FACULTY SENATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 13 February 2024 4:00 p.m. – Via Zoom

ACTIONMINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT: Julia Albarracin, Chair; Everett Hamner, Vice Chair; Denise Gravitt, Secretary **ALSO PRESENT:** Mark Mossman, Interim Provost; Jeremy Robinett, Parliamentarian; Annette Hamm, Faculty Senate Office Manager **GUESTS:** President Guiyou Huang; Bobbi Smith, Director, Financial Aid

1. Enrollment Verification Process

Financial Aid Director Bobbi Smith visited the Executive Committee to summarize the enrollment verification process, emphasize its importance, and explain the reasons why the Financial Aid office now asks for it. She recalled that a few years ago, during a full program review audit by the Department of Education (DOE), the University of Missouri was found not to have any mechanism in place to establish academic activity for Pell grant recipients. In order to disburse federal Pell grants, universities are required to verify that students have started academic activity in their classes. Ms. Smith explained that since the University of Missouri had not done so, the Pell grants they had paid to students became notof the previous year's

ns, which are very intensive. Ms. Smith related the

igh the financial aid world, and many institutions realized

cause they relied on information at the back end of the

e disbursed. relatid2.8 (e)8.3 (i)- (e)11.at ()10.8 (o)2 (n)12.9 (f)p2 (at)-2.6 (io(ci)e t)-2.6ess.

Interim Provost Mossman remarked that,

Chair Albarracin asked about the process for students taking in-person versus online courses. She observed that in-person students are just asked to show up for class, but with online students the process becomes more complicated because the question the instructor is asked at the end of the semester is whether the student turned in any coursework. She thinks that to log into the online course would seem to be equivalent to attending in person, so there appears to be a double standard at work between the two formats with online students being judged more strictly. Ms. Smith acknowledges there is a different standard because in-person students attending a lecture is considered academic activity; if a student is present when an instructor is talking about the subject matter, students can absorb it through osmosis even if they are not fully listening, When attending online, however, the student might not even be in the room, so Financial Aid requires online students to actively engage with the subject matter rather than just log in. Ms. Smith explained this could be as simple as an assignment for students to say why they are taking the course or what they want to get out of it, but not just an assignment for students to tell the instructor a little bit about themselves because that is not subject matter related. Ms. Smith said she appreciates academic freedom, but if faculty want to comply with the statute there needs to be activity specifically related to the curriculum.

Chair Albarracin observed that some faculty members post recordings of their lectures for those students who cannot attend in person or at the standard time. Ms. Smith responded that as long as the instructor has a tracking mechanism, this would count, but otherwise there is no verification that a student watched the video. She said if the instructor has a short quiz that the student takes and submits after watching the recording, that would be the verification of academic activity. Ms. Smith added that if a course is being livestreamed through zoom as well as being taught in person, the instructor can verify the student is engaging in academic activity if they can be seen online.

Parliamentarian Robinett pointed out that instructors can see how long students spend accessing things on WesternOnline, so if they watch a couple of videos and email the professor, even if they do not turn in an assignment, that would seem to count as engaging in an academic activity. He stated that in his role as faculty Athletics rep, he works with students across the campus, part of which involves weekly grade checks (with their permission), and Parliamentarian Robinett has been astounded at the number who do not have a grade entered because they have not yet had any assignments, even in online classes. He thinks the bigger challenge is how to get all faculty to assign something to use for verification because if they do not make assignments in the first four weeks it is unlikely they will do so in the first ten days. Ms. Smith said she often gets emails from faculty stating that they don't make assignments in the first few weeks and asking how to verify academic activity, and she sends those questions to the Provost's office.

Interim Provost Mossman remarked that no one is asking for a report; it is a very low bar, but it is also a compliance issue. He noted that students may have attendance problems that can be corrected as the semester goes on, but instructors need to have some sort of engagement with students to be able to verify that they are academically active. Chair Albarracin stated that, because students sometimes cannot purchase their books at the beginning of class, she changed to giving assignments three or four weeks into the semester. Ms. Smith said that Financial Aid is not looking for rigor but for substantive interaction between the instructor and student. She said this could involve the instructor emailing students the syllabus and asking them to email back confirming that they received it and listing one thing they want to get out of the class. She stated that the DOE writes their statutes in a way that is open to interpretation, so if a faculty member can show something that verifies student engagement the DOE would accept that in an audit versus not having any verification.

Ms. Smith would like to see the response rate from all colleges at 85 percent because that would show

statute. Ms. Smith attended faculty orientation this year to reinforce the importance of compliance to new faculty. Interim Provost Mossman agrees that not being able to show continuous improvement is troubling, and what is even more troubling is that the percentage for some colleges has declined, which puts the institution at risk. Ms. Smith stated that if the DOE finds out that verification has not been received for one out of 20 classes, they will extrapolate that percentage out to assume that is the case for many more classes and those students should not have received Pell grants. She informed ExCo that 54 percent of WIU students receive Pell grants, which is really high for a public university, so if WIU had to pay all of it back, as the University of Missouri did, it could bankrupt the university.

Interim Provost Mossman reiterated that President Huang has said from the start that the university will not lay off employees and will do everything to avoid that. He recalled that WIU in the past went through some bad times, including cutting programs and laying off employees, but that is not the reason for using the current consultant. He said one thing EAB might help with is suggesting ways to become more engaged with Quad Cities and Macomb workforce development, and EAB has the research tools to look at global trends. Interim Provost Mossman said he was surprised to find out the number one major for high school students currently is Undecided, which is a complete reversal from five years ago. He said these types of trends are the kinds of data institutions can get from a consulting form to help develop future policies. He noted that Governors State, for example, is working on a possible policy where students would not declare a major the first few days. Interim Provost Mossman said these types of decisions must be data driven, and in order to obtain that data an institution must work outsid**esof fised/8tHetaddf@Thatsfhetd}}** Smith and Edwards and Interim Provost Mossman

Respectfully submitted,

Annette Hamm, Faculty Senate Office Manager and Recording Secretary